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audited financial statements for the period ended December
31, 2022 which reflects the company’s operations and
business results for the year 2022.
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Kindly note that the results will be published in the local e sl Can ) 3 Al bl s sl M Ayl 2 gL

newspapers on March 16, 2023.

Best regards,

Hassan Morad Agha

Board Secretary § sl by B
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North Road, Exit 44, Umm Al-Hawaya Area, Al Khor & Al-Thakhira
T: (+974) 4035 8888 | P.O. Box: 3382, Doha, Qatar

CR: 140310 | Capital: 1,901,000,000 QAR Fully Paid
info@baladna.com
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2021 samud 31 b dugilal) dullall ddual! (5 4k JU; 133,835,883

Ji8a 2022 sad 31 A dpgilall Adull g kb Jly 0,042 sl Lo ilad) AL
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Disclosure Form:

BALADNA DISCLOSES ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 2022

BALADNA disclosed its audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022.The statement shows net profit of QR 80,611,726
Compared to net profit amounting to QR 133,835,883 for the previous

year.

Earnings per Share (EPS) amounted to QR 0.042 for the year ended 31
December 2022 compared to EPS amounted to QR 0.070 for the previous

year.

* Net profit does not include minority rights
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders
Baladna Q.P.S.C.
Al Khor, State of Qatar

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Baladna Q.P.S.C. (the “Company™), and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated statement of profit and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2022, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2022 in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the other ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in the State of Qatar, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
We tested revenue through a combination of controls testing, data
analytics and substantive audit procedures covering, in particular:

Key Audit Matters
Revenue recognition

The Group reported revenue of QR 985,620,392

from agriculture activities. s  Updating our understanding of the significant revenue processes
and identifying the relevant controls (including IT systems,

The Group’s sales arrangements are made on the interfaces and reports);

basis of the point of sale, with the provision of return | o Performing automated and manual controls tests and substantive

rights for customers in the event that the sold product tests, to ascertain accuracy and completeness of revenue;

is expired. o Assessing and testing the Group’s revenue accounting policies,
including the key judgements and estimate applied by

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit management in consideration of the requirements of IFRS 15;

matter because it is one of the key performance| o  Performing data analysis, and analytical reviews on significant

indicators of the Group and given rise to an inherent revenue streams;

risk of misstatement to meet expectations or targets.
: ' We also assess the overall presentation, structure and content of
Refer to the following notes of the consolidated | yevenue related disclosers in notes 3.2, 4 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements. financial statements.

e Note 3.2 — Significant accounting policies;

e Note 4 — Significant accounting judgments,
estimates and assumptions; and

o Note 5 — Revenue

Fair Valuation of Biological Assets Our audit procedures included,

IAS 41 “Agriculture” requires biological assetstobe | o  Understanding management’s  process for collecting the

measured at fair value less costs to sell, unless the
fair value cannot be reliably measured. Management
has used valuation method developed based on past
information, assumptions, market prices of livestock
of similar age, pregnancy, lactations and milk
production.

The calculation of the fair value of biological assets
involves a significant degree of judgement,
particularly in respect of landed cost, market prices
for calves and heifers.

Refer to the following notes of the consolidated
financial statements.

e  Note 3.2 — Significant accounting policies;
¢ Note 16 — Biological assets.

information to support the key assumptions and inputs adopted in
the valuation of biological assets and assessing the information
based on our knowledge of the Group and other audit procedures
performed.

Assessing the methodologies adopted in the valuation of biological
assets with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards with the consultation from our internal
technical team.

Assessing on a sample basis, the input data used in the valuations
of biological assets, including breeding costs, milk production
volumes and culling rates, based on available historical data.

Evaluating the adequacy of the disclosure in Financial Statements,
including disclosures of key assumptions, judgments and

sensitivities.

Ministry of Economy and industry No. : 27
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Other information

Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises of Annual report, which is expected to be made
available to us after the date of auditor’s report. The other information does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
IFRSs, applicable provisions of Qatar Commercial Companies Law and Company’s Articles of Association and for such internal

control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial repotting process.

Minfstry of Economy and industry No. : 27
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assutance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or ervor and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors report under law and regulation preclude public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Further, as required by the Qatar Commercial Companies Law, we report the following:

o  We are also in the opinion that proper books of account were maintained by the Group, physical inventory verification has
been duly carried out and the contents of the directors’ report are in agreement with the Group’s accompanying consolidated

financial statements.

o We obtained all the information and explanations which we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit.

o To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information given to us, no contraventions of the applicable
provisions of Qatar Commercial Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of Associations, were committed during the
period which would materially affect the Group’s consolidated financial position or its consolidated financial performance.

09239318 (gl 018 )39 rﬂ-«uwﬂ
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Partner  \J
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BALADNA Q.P.S.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Note 2022 2021
QR QR
Revenue 5 985,620,392 772,967,687
Cost of revenue [ (775,718,731) (576,260,958)
Gross profit 209,901,661 196,706,729
Other income 7 117,447,276 127,896,858
(Loss)/gain on financial investments at FVTPL (23,248,043) 10,829,791
Dividend income 11,454,216 -
Selling and distribution expenses 8 (87,094,441) (83,452,031)
General and administrative expenses 9 (86,565,664) (81,114,006)
Operating profit for the year 141,895,005 170,867,341
Finance cost and bank charges 10 (60,268,731) (36.403,383)
Profit before income tax 81,626,274 134,463,958
Income tax expense i1 (1,014,548) (628,075)
Profit after tax for the year 80,611,726 133,835,883
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 80,611,726 133,835,883
Basic and diluted earnings per share 28 0.042 0.070
(Expressed in OR per share)
The attached notes from 1 to 37 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Ugigild Oftialome - JL‘J":‘J-:"""‘I".""“JJ‘
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BALADNA Q.P.S.C.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

Note 2022 2021

QR OR

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 3,128,084,820 2,907,522,118
Right-of-use assets 13 21,056,526 39,867,189
Intangible assets 14 6,411,217 5,747,070
Financial investments held at FVTPL 15 218,124,952 144,060,018
Biological assets 16 219,941,340 197,722,614
Total non-current assets 3,593,618,855 3,294,919,009
Current assets
Inventories 17 442,974,185 271,936,438
Trade and other debit balances 18 307,970,755 277,294 247
Biological assets 16 813,800 562,800
Due from related parties 29(b) 30,709,498 15,376,456
Cash and bank balances 19 62,367,530 52,255,382
Total current assets 844,835,768 617,425,323
TOTAL ASSETS 4,438,454,623 3.912,344,332
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharcholders’ equity
Share capital 20 1,901,000,000 1,501,000,000
Legal reserve 21 37,157,664 29,096,491
Acquisition reserve 22 201,123,011 201,123,011
Retained earnings 109,584,477 139,812,217
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY 2,248,875,152 2,271,031,719
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Islamic financing 23 1,634,196,123 1,193,327,524
Employees’ end of service benefits 24 13,589,562 10,578,832
Lease liabilities 23 8,805,361 28,404,404
Total non-current liabilities 1,656,591,046 1,232,310,760
Current liabilities
Current portion of Islamic financing 23 86,125,000 78,000,000
Short term financing 26 88,206,914 51,321,755
Trade and other credit balances 27 239,693,454 177,030,835
Bank overdrafts 19 99,492,839 74,041,899
Lease liabilities 25 15,186,935 14,016,925
Due to related parties 29(¢c) 4,283,283 14,590,439
Total current liabilities 532,988,425 409,001,853
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,189,579,471 1641312613
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4,438,454,623 3,912,344,332

The attached notes from 1 to 37 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

nancial statements were app ied and authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on 15 March 2023,

y £

, w MR Mr. MM Mr. Saifullah Khan
anaging/Director Chief tive Officer Chief Finangial Officer
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BALADNA Q.P.S.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Share Legal Acquisition Retained

capital reserve reserve earnings Total

QR QR QR QR QR

As at 1 January 2022 1,901,000,000 29,096,491 201,123,011 139.812.217 2.271,031.719

Profit for the year - - - 80,611,726 80.611,726

Dividend declared (Vote 30} - - - (100,753,000) (100,753,000}

Transfer to legal reserve (Note 21) - 8,061,173 - (8,061,173) -

Transfer to social and sport fund (Nete 35) - - - (2,015,293) (2,015.293)

As at 31 December 2022 1,901,000,000 37,157,664 201,123,011 109,594,477 2,248,875,152
As at 1 January 2021 1,901,000,000 15,712,903 201,123,011 123,458,819 2,241,294,733
Profit for the year - - - 133,835,883 133,835,883
Dividend declared (Note 30) - - - (100,753,000) (100,753,000)
Transfer to legal reserve (Note 21) - 13,383,588 - (13,383,588) -
Transfer to social and sport fund (Note 35) - - - (3.345,897) (3,345.897)
As at 31 December 2021 1,901.000,000 29,096,491 201,123,011 139,812,217 2271.031.719

The attached notes from 1 to 37 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BALADNA Q.P.S.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Note 2022 2021
QR QR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax for the year 81,626,274 134,463,958
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12 125,452,244 111,194,633
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 13 12,901,441 13,311,193
Amortization of intangible assets 14 2,305,776 1,798,041
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 24 4,174,135 4,033.224
Impairment loss allowance on trade receivables 18 35,862 89,935
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7 186,986 (25,734)
Loss/(gain) on financial investments at FVTPL 23,248,043 (10,829,791)
Dividend income (11,454,216) -
Gain arising from change in fair value of biological assets 16 (68,896,232) (52,470,576)
Cost of slaughtered animals disposed and transfer 16 11,754,934 12,014,712
Loss from death of livestock 16 12,943,460 8,875,480
Finance cost on Icase liabilities 25 1,209,588 2,052,729
Finance cost 59,059,143 34,350,654
Operating cash flow before movement in working capital 254,547,438 258,858,458
Changes in:
Inventories (171,037,747) 28,808,994
Due from related partics (15,333,042) (783,393)
Trade and other debit balances (30,507,170) 3,523,374
Due to related parties (10,307,156) 9,824,157
Trade and other credit balances 50,039,051 (17,682,763)
Cash generated from operating activities 77,401,374 282,548,827
Employees’ end of service benefit paid 24 (1,163,405) (1,107,017)
Finance cost paid (65,847,126) (33.512,947)
Finance cost on lease liabilities paid (1,209,588) (2,052,729)
Income tax paid (813.770) (380,431)
Net cash generated from operating activities 8,367,485 245,495,703
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (7) 12 (340,387,904) (249,933,550)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 297,230 31,901
Purchase of intangible assets i4 (1,053,570) (1,919,997)
Disposal of investment securities 10,693,314 -
Acquisition of financial investments at fair value throiigh profit or loss (108,006,291) (133,230,227}
Dividend received 9,998,975 -
Net movement in biological assets 21,728,112 19,918,713
Net cash used in investing activities (406,730,134) (365,133,160}
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net movement in financing 485,878,758 244,934,488
Principal elements of lease payments (10,818,480) (12,182,458)
Dividend paid (92,036,421) (95,965,184)
Net movement in restricted cash 11,337,223 (30,838.254)
Net cash generated from financing activities 394,361,080 105,948,592
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,001,569) (13,688,865)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (52,624,771) (38,935,906)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 19 (56,626,340) (52,624,771)

(i) An amount of QR 8,027,611 (2021:0OR 278,872) has been excluded from the purchase of property, plant and equipment for the cash

flow statement as it represents the finance cost capitalized during the year.

The attached notes from 1 to 37 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

U Dpralons - 01809 jlaidoyga
Moore Stephens and Partners
Certified Public Accountants

MOORE STEPHENS

Stamped For Identification Purpose Only




BALADNA Q.P.S.C,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Corporate information

Baladna Q.P.S.C. (the “Company”) was established in the State of Qatar under commercial registration number 1403 10, as Qatari
Public Sharcholding Company. The Company finalized legal documentation for the process of establishment and issuance of the
Commercial registration on 2 December 2019 (the “Establishment Date™), pursusnt to the provisions of Qatar Commerciat
Companies Law. The Company's registered office is at P.O Box 3382, Um Alhawaya Farm, State of Qatar.

These consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of the Company and is subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group™), as follows:

Couniry of Percentage of
Subsidiary Name incorporation  Type of interest effective control
Baladna Food Industvies W L.L. {Note i) Qatar Subsidiary 130%
Baladna Food Trading W.L.L. (Norve fi} Qatar Subsidiary 100%
Baladna Business and Trading LLC (Mote #i) Oman Subsidiary 100%
Awafi W.L.L. (Note ) Qatar Subsidiary 100%
Baladna for Trading and Investment W.L.L. {Note v) Qatar Subsidiary 10024
Agrocare Development S.R.L (Nofe vi) Romania Subsidiary 100%

Notes:

{1} Baladna Food Industries W.L.L. is a limited liability company established under Commerciat Registration No. 64756 and
is owned 100% by the Company, The principal activity is production and sales of milk, juice, slanghter of animals and sale
of meat.

{#} Baladna Food Trading W.L.L. is a limited liability company established under Commercial Registralion No. 133592 and is
owned 100% by Bealadna Food Industries W.L,L. The principal activity is trading in the food materials.

(7il} Baladna Business and Trading LLC is a limited l{ability company established under Commercial Registration No.£343623
and is owned 99% by Baladna Food [ndustries W.L.E. and 1% by Baladna Food Trading W.L.L. The prmclpal activities
are as follow:

- -Retail sale in specialized stores of dairy products, eggs, olive and plckles,
= Activities of export and import offices; and
-Wholesale of soft drinks, juices and mineral water,

(v} Awafi W.LL. is alimited Hability compaty ¢stablished under Commercial Registration No. 141419 and is owned 100%
by Baladna Q P.5.C. The principal activity is trading in the food materials, packaging and dairy products.

{¥) Baladna for Trading and Investment W.L.L, is & limited liabitity company established under Commercial Registration no
157435 and is owned 100% by Batadna Q.P.8.C. The principal activity is trading feed, invesiment and management of
agriculiural projects and investment ouiside Qatar. :

{vi) Agrocare Development 5.R L., is 2 limited Jiability company established under Commerciat Registration No. 593753 and is
owned 100% by Baladna for Trading and Investrment W.L.L. The principsl activity of the company is growing of cereals
{exeept rice), leguminous Crops and Oil Seeds. (Company under incorporation)

The principal activitics of the Group are agricultural activities of production and sales of milk, juice, slaughter of animal and sale
of meats.




BALADNA Q.P.S.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2.

21

2.2

r e weo

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
New standards and amendments effective in the period on or after I Janunary 2022

The consolidated financial statements have been dtawn up based on accounting standards, interpretations and amendimems
effective at 1 January 2022, The Group has adopted the following new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by
International Accounting Standards Board and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, which were
effective for the current accounting period:

Amendments 1o IAS 16: Proceeds bejore intended e

Amendments o IAS 16 *Property, plant and equipment’ sequires the Group to rscopnise the sales proceeds from selling items
produced while preparing property, plant and equipment for its intended use and the related costs in profit or loss, instead of
deducting the amounts received from the cost of the asset, This amendment is applied retrospectively.

Amendments to [AS 37 Onerows Contracis - Costs of fulfilling a contract

The Group also adopted the amendments to [AS 37 ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets”™ specify the costs
that an entity includes when assessing wietier a comtract will be loss-making. There was no impact of adopting this amendment
and no contracls have been identified as onercus.

Amendments to IFRS 16 “Leases’ Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 was early adepted by the Group

m202L - -

WNew standards and amendments issued but not yet effective for years ending 31 December 2022

The Group has not applied the following new or amended standards and interpretations that have been issued by the [ASB but
are not yet mandatory for the financiat year ended 31 December 2022, The Group has not yet assessed (he impact of these new
or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations.

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts
Amendments to JAS I - Classifieation of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Amendmenis io IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and ils associafe o joint
venture ' '
Amendments to 145 | and IFRS Practice Statement 2 - Disclosure of Accoumting Policies
Amendmenis to TA8 8 - Disclosure of Accownting Policies and Definition of Accounting Estimates
. Amendments to IAS 12 - Deferred tax velated lo assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction

IFRS 17 ‘Insarance contracts” establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts issned. [t also requires similar principles 1o be applied to reinsurance contracis held and investment contracts with
discretionary participation features issued. IFRS 17 is effective for annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2023.

Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of financial statements’ clarify requirements for the presenmtation of liabifities in fhe
statement of financial position as current or non-current. The meaning of settlement of a liability is also clarified. The
amendments are applicable for annual periods commencing on or after [ January 2023.

Amendments to IFRS 10 *Consolidated financial statements’ and 1AS 2§ “Investments in sssociates’ clarify the accounting
treatment for sales or contribution of assets between an investor and its associates or jeint ventures. Where the non-monetary
assets constitute a business, the investor will recogaise the fisll gain or loss on the sale or contribution of assets. Olherwise, the
pain or foss is recognised by the investor only to the extent of the otler investor’s interests in the associate or joint venture. The
amendments have been deferred until IASB has finalised its research project on the equity method.

Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting Policies and Definition of Accounting Estimates modify:

»  IFRS 7, to clarify that informatien about measurement bases for financial instruments is expected to be material to an
entity’s financial statements;

+ 1AS 1, to require entities to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their significant accounting
policics;

» 1AS 8, to clarify how entities should distingvish changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates;

o 1AS 34, to idemify material accounting pelicy information as a component of a complefe set of financial statements; and

+  IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements, to provide guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality fo accounting policy disclosures,




BALADNA Q.P.S.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) (Continued)
New standards and amendments issued bué not yet effective for years ending 31 December 2022 {Continued)

Amendments to Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction modify EAS 12 to clarify the
accounting for deferred tax on transactions that, at the time of the transaction, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. In specified circumstarnces, entities are exempt rom recognising deferred tax when they recoghise assets or liabilitics
for the first time. The amendments clarify that the exemption does not apply to transactions for which entities recognise both an
asset and a liability and that give rise to equal taxabie and deductible temperary differences. This may be the case for transactions
such as leases and decommissioning, restoration and similar obligations. Entities are required to recognise deferred tax on such
transactions.

The Standard amends 1FRS 1 to require deferred tax refated to leases and decommissioning, restoration and similar obligations
to be recognised by first-time adopters at the date of transition to lntematlonal Acmuntlng Standards despite the e.xemplmn set
outin [AS 12. :

Basls of preparation and significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordsnce with IFRS issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (JASB), applicable provisions of Qatar Commercial Companies Law and the Company’s Articles
of Association, and the applicable provision of the Qatar Commercial Companies Law No. 11 of 2015 and subsequent
amendments by Law No. § of 2021.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in Qatari Riyals (QR), which is the Group’s functional and presentation
currency and all financial information has been rounded off to (he nearest QR, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial mvcstmcms held at faLr _
value timough profit or loss and biological assets which have been measured at fair value.

When an asset and liability, finencial or non-financial, are measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure purposes, are
classified into three levels, using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the sipnificance of the inputs used in making the
MICASUrCIEIS,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. [t alsa
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies selected for use by the Group.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas wlers assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in relevant notes as summarised in note 4. Use of available information and
application of judgement are inherent in the formation of estimates, Actual outcomes in the frture could differ from such
estimates.

Basis of consolidation

The conselidated financial statements comprise the finencial statemeats of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. The controd is achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investes
- isexpased, or has rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the investee, and
= has the abifity to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or nof it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majerity of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to divect the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all
refevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient 1o give it
power, including:

= the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights refative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

- potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other partics;

- rights arising from contractnal arrangements; and

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Cotmpany has, or does not have the current ability to direct the
eclevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

12




BALADNA Q.P.8.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3.
3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation and significant accounting pollekes (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)
Basis of consolidation {Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins wher the Company obtains conirol over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Company gaing control until
the date the Company ceases to control the subsidiary,

Profit or 1oss and each component of other comprehensive income are atiributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attributable to the owmers of the Group
and to the non-controlling intercsts even if this resnlts in the non-controiling interests having a deficit balance,

When necessary, adjusiments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting polisies into line with
the Group's accounting policies. All intra company assets and Habilitics, equity, income, ¢xpenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between membets of the Group are eliminated in fult on consolidation.

-Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power, directly or indirectly,

- to govern the financiat and operating policies of an enterprise so as to obtain benefits from s activities. The existence and effect
. of potential voting rights that are cumrently exercisable or convertible, including potential voting rights held by another entity,

are considered when assessing whether an entity is controlled, The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. The financial statements
of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period a3 the parent company,

Change in interests of a subsidiary
Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiarics that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity (ransactions.

. The carrying amowit of (he Group’s interests and the non-conlrolling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative

interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adfusted and the fair
value of the considetation paid or received is recoguised direcily in equity and attributed to the owners qf the Company.

. ‘Loss of conrrel
" When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it dcrecogmses the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any refated non-

conirolling interests and other componenis of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated statement of pmﬁt

' or foss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when ccmml is lost.

. Tramsactions eliminared on consolidation
" Intercompany balances and Wransactions, and any unrealized gains arising from mtcrccmpany transacuons are elitninated in

preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies that have been applied consistently by the Group to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements, are set owd below.

Revenue recognition
Kevenire from contract with customers

“Revenue from contract with customer” outiines a single comprehensive model of accouating for revenue arising from contract
with customers and sapersedes current revenne recoghition guidance found across several Standards and Interpretations within
TFRS. It establishes a new five-step model that will apply ic revenue erising fiom contract with customers.

Step 1; Identify the coniract(s) with customer.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in the contract.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

Step 4: Allocate transaction price to the performance obligation in the contract.

Step 5: Recognize revetue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation,

The Group is in the business of producing milk from cows for the sale of fresh mitk, long life milk, cheese, yogburt and other
dairy products and the slaughter of cows for the sale of meat and production and sake of chifled and long-life juices. Revenue
from contracts with customers is recognised when goods are delivered to and have been accepted by the customer and are
transferzed to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expeets to be entitled in exchange for
those products. The Group has generally conchuded that it is (ke principal in its sevenue ammangements because it typicaily controls
the products before transferting them to ihe customer.

13
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3.

32

Rasis of preparation and significant aceounting policies (Continued}
Significant accounting pelicies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sale of dairy, livestock for meal and consumuables

Revenues are generally recognised when the goods are delivered to and have been accepted by the customer. Tnvoices are
generated and revenue is recognised at that point in time. Credit invoices are usually payable within 30 - 60 days. Invoice is
generated and recognised as revenue net of applicable discounts which relate to the items sold. No customer loyalty points are
offered to customer and therefore there is no deferred revenue to be recognised for the items sold.

Right of refurn
When a contract provides a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period, the Ciruup estimate the expected
retumns using expected value method and recognise revenue net of such right of return,

Folunte vebates
Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer, To estimate the variable consideration for the expected fature
rebates, the Group applics the most likely amount method for confracts with a single-volume threshold and the expected value

‘method for contracts with more than one volume threshold.

. There is no other variable consideration attached to the Groups products as the Group does not operate any lovalty program
‘schemes, no sugmﬁcant ﬁnancmg components are embedded in ns contract wuh cusiomer and warranty obhgatmns are mot -

applicable,
Rental income
Remntal income from other property is recognised as other income,

Dividend invome

- Dividends from investments are recogitised when the sharcholder's right to receive payment has been established.
- Government support I A '
. The Group receives government support related to the investments made in the field of dairy production in the State of Qatar.
- Government suppost is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when there is -
. reasonable assurance that it will be received and the Group will comply with the conditions associated with the support. '

. (overnment support is expected to be received in fixed instalments on a systematic basis to match the losses incurred by the
-Group during the priot years and to match its future dcpteclaxlon cxpcnsm on the dalry manufactunng facllmw )

Cost and expense recogaition.

Expensss are also recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when decrease in
future economic benefit related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability that can be measured reliably has arisen.
Expenses are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on the basis of a direct
association between costs incurred and the eaming of specific items of income; on the basis of systematic and rationsl allocation
procedures when econoimic benefits are expected to arise over several accounting years and the association can only be broadly
or indirectly determined; or immediately when an expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when, and to the extent
that future economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition in the consolidated statement of financial position
as an asset,

Finance cost

Finance cost that is directly atiributable te the acquisition, construction, or production of a qualifying asset is included in the cost
of that asset until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale, All other ﬁnance cost is reported
in the statement of proﬁt or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which it is mcurred

Inceme tax

Inceme tax is computed on the net profit adjusted for the tax purposes in accordance with the provisions of Law no. 24 of 2018
concerning Qatari income tax,

Tax expense

Current taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period, except to the extent that the
tax srises from;

- A transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income, or
- A business combination.
4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3.

3.2

Basis of preparation and significaat accounting policies {Continued)
Signiftcant accounting polictes (Continued)
locome tax (Continued)

Current taxes are charged or credited to other comprehiensive income if the tax relates to ftems that are credited or charged, in
the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income.

Current taxes are charged or credited dlrectly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged, in the same or a
different period, ditectly in equity.

Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calcolated by dividing

the profit or loss afiributable to ordinary sharcholders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the peried. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or foss attributable to ordinary shareholders and

“the weighted sverage number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all difutive potential ordinary shares, which

comprise convertible notes and share oplions granted 1o employees, if any.

Where the effect of the assumed conversion of the convertible notes and the exercnse of al outstandmg optlons ha\re antmhlulwe )

. effect, basic and diluted EPS are stated at iila same amount

Property, plant and equipment - o

Property, ptani and equipmment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Land is not
depreciated.

Deepreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated usefil life of the assets as follows:

Buildings and structures A 5 - 40 years

Machineries o ... 2.25vyears

. Motor vehicles S0 T 5-1Zyears
" Fuenifure and fixtures o © 7 3-5yeas

‘Building and structure includes porta cebins, cow barns, factories and buﬂdmgs due to whlch thc uscﬁll Life of the assets. has
‘been spread over & period of 5 10 40 years, However, individually, it varics. .

. The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circomstances
“iirdicate that 1he carrying value may not be recoverable, If any such indication exists and where the carying values exceed the

estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount, being the higher of their fair value less
costs to sell and their value in use.

The usefisl lives are reviewed at each financial reporting date. The change in estimated wseful life of assets affects depreciation
expense for the period in which the change has occurred and for cach future period during the assels’ remaining useful fife.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property, plant and equipment that is accounted for separately is
capitalised and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised
only when it increases future economic benefits of the refated item of property, plant and equipment. Alf other expenditure is
recognised in the consofidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as the expense is incurred,

Capital work-in-progress will be transferred to the appropriate classnﬁcauon of property, plant and eguipment upon iis
oompletmn Capital work in progress is not depreciated,

© Anitem of property, piant and cquapmcnt is derecognised upon disposal or when no future econemic benefiis are expected from

its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on dcrccogmtmn of the asset is included in lhc oonsolldated statement of profit or
Yoss and other comprehensive incotne in ihe year the asset is darewgmsed -

Assets snder construction
Asset under construction are catried at cost less any identified impaimment loss. Costs include supervision fees and related

expenses, professional fees, finance costs capitalized in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other fixed assets, commences when the assels are ready for their intended use.

15
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Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Finance costs capitalization

Finance cost md other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the finance of funds. A qualifying asset for finance cost
capitafization is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for &s intended use or sale. The Group
capitalizes finance costs that are direcily attributable to the acquisition, constraction or production of a qualifying assct as part of
the cost of that asset. Tie Group recognizes other finance costs as an expense in the period in which it incurs themn.

The Group begins capitatizing finance costs as part of the cost of' a qualifying asset on the commencement dalc The commanoement
date for capitalization is the date when the Group first meeis all of the foflowing conditions:

i) Incars expenditures for the asset;
i} Incors finance costs; and
1ii) Undertakes activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended vse or sale.

To the extent that the Group borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the Group determines the
amomt of finance costs ¢ligible for capitaiization as the actual finance costs incurred on that ﬁnance dunng the pcrmd less an)f
investment income on (be {emporary investment of those financing, if any. .

The financing costs applicable to the financing of the Group that are outstanding during the period, other than those specific
financing mentioned above as made specifically for the purpose of oblaining a qualified asset, are capitalized by applying a
capitalization rate to the expenditures on {lat asset. The amount of financing costs that the Group capitalizes during the period is
not to excead the amount of financing costs it incurred during that period. '

The Group suspends capitalization of financing costs during extended periods in which it suspends active development of &
qualifying asset, and ceases capitalizing financing costs when substantially afl the ar:twmes mccssary to prepﬂre lhc quahfymg asset

fm' its intended use or sale are complﬂb:

'Leases

The gioup leases various offices, equipment and vehicles. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The

. proup allocates the consideration in the coniract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices
- unless it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a oom:spondmg llablllt)r at the date at which the leased asset is availablc for
use by the group. . S

Lease ligbilities include the net present value of the following lsase payments:

s fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), fess any lease incentives receivable

»  variable lease payment that are based on an index or & rate, initially measured using the index or ratc as at the
commencement dats

»  amounts expected o be payable by the group under residual value guarantees

»  (he exercise price of a purchase opticn if the group is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

»  payments of penaliies for terminating the lease, if the lease tecm reflects the group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also inchuded in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the finance rate implicit in the lease. If that vate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the group, the lessee’s incremental financing rate is used, being the rate that the individeal lessee

would have te pay (o borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of snmlar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions,

The group is exposed to potential fitture increases in varisble lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not included
in the fease Hability until they take effect. When adjustiments to Jease payments based an an index or rate take ¢ffect, the lease
liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset,

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of fmance on lhe remammg halam:e of the ]lablllty for each period.
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3. Basis of preparation and sipnificant accounting polickes {Continued)
32 Sigrificant accownting policies {Coatinued)

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use asseis are measured at cost comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
any initial direct costs, and

restoration costs.

. # » »

Riglit-of-use assels are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a siraight-line basis,
If the group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the undetlying asset’s
useful life,

" Payments associated with short-term leases and of low-value assels are recognised on a straight-fine basis as an expense in profit
or loss. o

"~ . Amounis due from lessees under finance Ieases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group’s investment in the
- relevant leases. Income from finance leases is allocated to accounting periods o a3 to reﬂect 8 comtmt permdxc rate of Ietum
- -on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the relevant leases. . . : ’

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The yespective leased assets are included in the
batance sheet based on their nafure.

. lntanglble assels

. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following uulial reoogmtmn, mtanglbic BSSELS
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impaisment losses, .~ -

- Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever theee is an

‘indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation methed for an intangible asset

. with 2 finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of ¢ach reporting period and ally change m est:lnate is aocounted for on
- prospective basis. '

Intangible assets with indefinite useful fives are not amontised, but are tested for impainment annually, Gains or losses arising
from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal prooaeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the separate statement of profit or loss and other comprehenswe income when the asset
is derecognised,

Amortization is charged on intangible assets so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, over their estimated useful lives,
less estimated residual value, using the reducing balance method on the following bases:

Intangible assets represent 1he cost trade mark and computer software. Useful life of intangibles ranges from 3 to 10 years and
carried at cost less accomulated amertisation. Amortisation is calculated ysing the straight-line method.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets, to determine whether ihere
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. [f any such indication exists, the recoveratde amount of the
asset is estimated in order 1o determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amouut of the cash-generating unit to which the
asgsed belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (o cash-generating unit) is estimated o be Jess than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (cash-generating uni) is reduced 1o its recoverable amount, An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment koss is treated as arevaluation
decrease. Where an impaimment loss subsequently reverses (except for goodwill), the camying amount of the asset (cash-
generating unit} is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the camrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the assel (cash-
generating unit) in prior years, A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment Joss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Basis of preparation and significant aceonnting policies (Continued}
Significant accounting pelicies (Continved)

Finauncial ins(rﬁments - imitial vecognition and subseqsent measurement
Recognition and derecognition of financial insirinmenfs

Financial instruments, other than derivative financial instruments, are recognised on the Group's statement of financiat position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets that are regular way purchased or sold are recognised using the trade date accounting i.e. that is when the Group
commits to purchase or sell.

Financial instrements that are not irade receivables are initially measured at fair vatue, which generally equates fo acquisition
cost, which includes transaction costis for financial instruments not subsequentty measured at fair value.

Trade receivables are recognised at transaction cost if they do net coatain a significant financing element {IFRS 15).

Financial assets are derecognised when:

_ - The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expire, or

-~ the asset is transferred such that contracmal rights o cash ﬂows of the asses and thc l‘lSkS and rewards of owncrshlp are
iransferred,

On de-recognition, the Group recognised the differences between camying amount and consideration.

In factoring srrangements and guaranteed receivables, transfer may not result in de-recognition, because the Group retains
exposute to risks and rewards to some extent. The Group assesses its extended involvement and recognises a liability, such that
the net of asset and liability represenis the rights and obligations rctained, measured based on the classification of the original
asset,

Financial liabitities (or a part of) are derecognised when, and onby when the obligation is exﬁngnished —i.e. when the obligation

. -specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. The gam or lnss bcﬂvecn the carrymg valuc and amount pald is
" recognised in profit or loss. . . -

" If the terms of an existing financial liability {financings) are substantla]ly modificd this wili bc consuicrcd o mcet thc criteria . . .
- dor derecognition of the original labikity, and a new finencial liability is Iemgmscd : S : :

Classification and subseguent measurement of financial assets

Measarement of financial assets depends on the classification, which is determined by the business, moclel for holdmg the asset
and characteristics of its cash flows,

i Amortised cost
Assets are held for the putpose of obtaining contractual cash flows, which are solely finance cost and principal, such as
vanilla debt instmments, financing and receivables including coniract assets. Finance cost is caleulated using effective return
method and included in finance income in profit or koss. Impairment is presented in a separate ke in profit or loss.

ii. Fair value larough other comprehensive income (FYQOCT)
If in addition to above, if the business model slso includes selling the assets, then these assets are measured at fair value
with changes in FVOCI. finance income is calenlated and presented as above. Impairment is included in profit or lcss and
teduces/ increases Ihe fair value gain/ loss recognised in OCI reserve.
On derecognition; gaing and losses are recycled to profit or loss and included in other gains/ losses.

iii. Fair value through profit or loss {FYTFL)
Assets that do not meet the criteria above arc measured as FVTPL with changes in fair value presented in other gains/ losses.
For equity investments that the gronp considers to be long term strategic investments, the group has taken the election in
IFRS 9 to present the changes in FVOCI. Unlike ii) above however, on sale of investments, the cumufative OCI gain/ loss
will be transferred within equity and will not be recycled through profit or loss.

Dividends are recognisad as other income when there is a right to receive payment.
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Basis of preparation and significant Accounting policies (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments - initia} recognition and subsequent measnrement (Continued)
Classificaiion and measurement of financial liabilities

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial lisbilitics or as equily in accordance witlk the substance of the
contractual arrangement.

i.  Financial lighifities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial liabilities, which are measured at

_amortised cost. Financial liabilitics are classified at FVTPL if they are either held for trading or they are otherwise
‘designated wilhin this classification. (Gains and losses on such fmancml liabilities are recognised within other gains and
losses in the statement of compreliensive income.

A financial liability is classified as held for tradinp if (2} it has been acquired principally for the purposes of subsequent
short-term repurchase; (b) on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identificd financial instruments which have a
‘pattern of short-term profit takmg, or (c) it is & derivative financial mstrumcnt that is not dwgnatcd and effectwe asa

: -hedgmg msrrument o S

A ﬁmmclal liability may otherwise be designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
reduces significantly & measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or {b) the financial liakility
forms part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its perfoninance evaluated on a
fair value basig as a part of the Group’s documented risk management and investinent, strategics; and (c) it forms part of a
contract containing one or more embedded derivatives and the enfive contract can be so designated in accordance with
applicable financial reporting standards.

Other financial l{abilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
© amestised cost using the effective retum method, with finance expense recogmsed onan. effecnve yleld bams, w1tl1m ﬁnance
© costs in the statement of comprehensive income. . Do : '

"The Group derecognises financial _li_abi_iitics whgn the o_bligations of tlag_Group are discharged, cancelled or have expired,
i, Eabedded desvatives S e . .o : Lo

" Derivatives embedded in other financial instrumends or non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives
when their risks and characterislics are not closely related to those oFhost contracts and the host contracts are not measured
at FVTPL. ' '

However financial liabilities which confain multiple embedded derivatives are not separated and are treated as FYTPL.

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise convertible financing notes that can be converted to share capital
at the option of the holder, and the number of shares {o be issugd does not vary with changes in their fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initiaily af the fair value of a similar liability that does
not have an equity conrversion option. The equity component is recognised initially at the difference between the fair value of the
compound financial instroment as a whele and the fair value of the liability component, Any directly attributable transaction
costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost using
the effective retumn method. The equity component of 2 compound financial mstmmcnt is not re-measured mhsequent to initiat
recoguition except on conversion or expiry.

The finance expense on the liability component is calculated by applying the effeciive retun method. This is obtained by
calculating the present value of future cash flows at a market rate for a financing without the convertible component. The
difference between the effective finance rate and the finance cost paid is added to the carrying amount of the convertible financing
note.

Finance cost, dividends, losses and gains selating to the financial liability are recognised in profit or loss, Distributions to the
equity holders are recognised in equity, net of a.ttrlbutahlc taxation.
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Basis of preparation and significant aceounting policies (Continned)

Signilicant acconniing policies {Continued)

Financiaf instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement {Continued)

Cffsetting financial instrumenis

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsct and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only when
there is a legalty enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the

asset and settle the liabitity simultancously.

Currently the group does not offset financial assets and financial liabikilies. The only relevant arraugement the Crruup is sub_;ect
to is a master netiing arangement. .

Impairment
The following assets have specific characteristics for impairment testing:
Impairinent of financial asseis

‘The Group considers bank balances to havc luw credit rlsk when its credlt risk Iatmg 1s equwalent o the globally understood
definition of “investment grade’. ' .

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expecied Jife of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that resuft from default events that are possible withing the 12 months after reporting
date (or a shorter period if Ghe expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period mnmdcred when estlrnatmg EJCLS is the maximam contractual penod over whlch the Group is cxposcd to

: credll risk.
. Measuremeni of ECLs

"ECLsarca probability-weighted estimate of credit losses, Credit losses are measured ag the present value of ll cash shortfalls S
“(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and ths cash ﬂows that the Graup S

expects o receive). ECLs are discounted at the effectwe finance ratc of the ﬁnanclal asset.
Credit-impaired financial assets

At each 1eporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are oredit impaired. A financial asset
is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash ﬂuws of the financial
asset have ocourred,

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the foflowing observable data;

- Significant financial difficulty of the customer or issuer;

- abreach of contract such as a default or being more than 360 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan ir advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise;
- it is probable that the customer will enter bankmuptcy or other financial recrganization; or

the disappearance of an sctive market for a security because of financial difficuliies

Presentaiion of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowanges for financial asse(s measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross catrying amount of the assets.

Tmpairment losses related to financial assets are prcsented under net lmpa:rment (Ioss)freversal on {inanclal assets in the
consolidated income statement.

Write-off’

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonsble expectations of recovering a
financial asset in ifts entirely of a portion thereof. The Group individnally makes an assessment with respect to the timing and
amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of 1ecovery from the amount written off. However,
financial agsets that are written off could still be subject to cnfurcememl aclivities in order 1o comply with the Group's proceduses
for recovery of amounts due.
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Basis of preparation and signifticant accounting policies (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continuned)

Biological assets

A biological asset is a living animal or plant, Biological assels consist of cows, Biological assets are measured at fair value less
cost to sell, with any change therein recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Where the fair value cannot be measured reliably, in such a case, that biological asset shall be measured at ifs cost less any
accumulated depeeciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Once the fair value of such a biological asset becomes reliably
measnrable, an entity shall measure it at its fair value less costs to sell.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable vatue. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct

Jabor costs and these overheads that have been incured in bringing the inventories 40 their present location and condition,
excluding financing costs. Cost of the inventory is determined by the weighted average cost methods and includes inveiced cost

‘and other expenditures incurred in bringing the inventories to their present localion and condition. Net realizable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for sale performed in the ordinary course of business, Trade receivables are
financial assets stated initiafly at fair value which is taken to be their transaction cost and subsequently at their amortised cost
less any loss allowance. Loss allowance is based on lifetime expected credit losses assess and detenmined at initial recognition
and subsequently adjusted for any changes in expectation,

Trade receivables expected to be recelvecl in the next ysar are classified as current assets If rLot they are presentcd AS noR-Curment

. Assets.
e Casil and cash equivalents
- .:Cash und cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balances held with central banks and highly liquid
- financial assets with original maturities of (hree months or less that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in their fair

-+ yalue, and are used by the Group in the management of its shcrrt—lerr_u onmm:tmcnts Cash and cash eqmvalems are came(i at -
: amortisecl cost in the ccnsalldatcd statement of financial posmon

: Shareholders’ equity

Share capital represents the total capital per commercial registration which is (reated as equity. Equily instruments are measured
at the fair value of the cash or other resources received or raceivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments.

Retained earnings inclade !l accnmulated profits o Iosses of the Group less any dividends, legal reserve and social and sports
find,

Dividend

Dividend distributions to the Group’s shareholders are recognized as a liability in the consolidated financial statements in the
period in which the dividend s approved by the shareholders. Dividend for the year that are approved aﬂcr the reporting date of

: Ihe consolLdated ﬁnanmal statcmcnts are conmdcrcd as an event after thc r:portmg date
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Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Coatinued)
Significant aceounting policies (Continued)

Financing

ARer initial recognition at fair vatue net of directly attributable transaction costs, Islamic financing, short term financings
and bank overdraft are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective retur rate method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income wien the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective return rate method amontisation process.

Employees’ end of service benefits

The end of service benefiis to its employees is in accordance with Qatar Labor Law. The entitlement (o these benefits is
based upon the employees’ final salary and bength of service. The expested costs of these benefits are accrued over the
period of employment.

Under Law No. 24 of 2002 on Retirement and Pension, the Group is required to made contributions to a Government fund
schetne for Qatari employees calculated as a percentage of the Qatari employees salanes The Grcup s obllgatwns are
limited to these oomnbunons whkch ar¢ expensed when due, o

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of & past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to setile the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provisiot is the best estimate of the consideration required to scttle the present obligation at the
statement of financial posmon date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the uhligation Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the pnesent value
of those cash flows,

. When some or all of the economic henefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered fromt a third party, the

receivable is recognised as an assel if it is vu’tually certain that remlbursement w1ll bc rccelvcd and thc ammmt of the
receivable can be measured refiably. . o . R .

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign cuerencies are recorded in QR at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
Ateach reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign enrrencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the ceporting date, Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fafr value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates prevailing af the date when the fair vafue was determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair velue is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in
fair vatue of the item (i_e., transiation differences on items whose faiv value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss are also recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

Segmental reporting

An operating segment i a component of the group that engages in the business activities from which it may eam revenues
and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any of group’s other components. The
segmental results that are reported to the Group's chief operating decision makers ("CODM™) to make decision about the
resources 1o be allocated to segment and to assess its performance.

Financial information om opersting segments is presented in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements

22




BALADNA Q.P.S.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3.

3.2

4,

Basis of preparation and significant accounting poelicies (Continued)
Significant acconnting policies (Continued)
Fair valuoe measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measnrement date, regardless of whether that price s directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. When measuring fair value of an asset or liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability i market participants would take those characteristics inte account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

The fair vaiue measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
messurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unédjusted} in active markets for identical assets or Liabilities that the entity can access at

_ the measurement date.

: .Lc\rel 2 inputs are inputs othcr than quoted priccs mcludcdwnhm chci 1 Lhat are cbscrvahle for the asset oF hablllty, ellher :

direotly or indirectly,

Level 3 inputs are uncbservable inpuis for the asset or liability.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain foture events not wholly within the control of the Group. Tt can

‘also be a present obligation arising from (e past-evenis that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
-gconotmic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

D _Contingcnt liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated finaocial statements. When &
- change in the probability of an outflow ocewrs so that outflow is probablg, it will then be recognised as provision. . )
. Events after the reporting date . ; . .

" Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group's financial position at reporting date {adjusting
.events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end cvcnis lhat are not ad_]uslmg events are dlsclosed )

in the notes io the consolidated financial statements when material.
Significant accounting judgemend, estimates and assumptlon

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions which affect
repoited income, expenses, assets, Liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and babilities, Use of available information
and application of judgement are inherent in the formation of estimates, together with past experience and expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results in the foture could differ from such
estimates.

Certain areas of consolidated financial statements require management to make judgements and estiinates in application of
accounting policies and measurement of reported amounts. These are continuously monitored for any factors that would
lead to a change in assumption or lead to & different decision, Any changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

The estimates and assumptions that have 8 significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the canying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are noted below with reference to relevant notes containing farther
assessment of the nature and impact of the assumptions.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates judgments, apart

from fhose involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on tlw amnounts recognised in the consclidated
financial statements:
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Significan{ aceounting judgement, estimates and assumption (Continued)
Sutisfaction of performance obligation

The Group is required fo assess cach of its contracts with customers to determine whether performance obligations are
satisfied over time or at a point in time in orcer to determtine (he appropriate method of recognizing revenue. For sale of
goods through retail outlets, hotels, restaurants and cafeteria’s revenue recognized by the group at a point in time when the
goods are sold and control is transferred to customer.

Determination of trausiction price

The Group is required to determine the transaction price in respect of each of its contracts with customers. In making such
judgement, the entify assesses the impact of any variable consideration in the contract, due to discounts, rights of refum,
the existence of any significant financing component and any con-cash consideration in the contract.

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financisl assets depends on (he results of (he SPPI and the business model test. The
Group determines the business model at a level that reflects how Groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve
a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the
petformance of the assets is evaheated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets
and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated, The Group monitors financial assels
measured af amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their mafurity
1o wnderstand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for
which the asset was held, Monitoring is part of the Group’s continveous assessment of whether the business model for which
the remaining financial assets are held continues to he appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a
change in busiress model and so & prospective change to the classification of those assets,

Significant increase in credit visk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL assets for stage 2 or stage 3

' assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. IFRS ¢ does not
" “define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly

increased the Group takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward loaking information.

The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-leoking information on macrogconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers fo setfle the receivables. The Group has identified the GDP of the country in which it sells its
goods to be the most relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based cn expected changes in these
factors, s o

Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term, wanagement considers all facts and circnmstances that create an economic incenlive to
exercise an exfension eption, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options)
are pnly included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminaied),

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Group becomes cbliged to exercise
{or not exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances occurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the conteol of the lesses. During the current financial
year, there has been nio revision in the ease terms.

Going concern

The Group’s managenment has made an assessment of the Group’s ability to coatinue as & going concein and is satisGed that
the Group has the resources to continue in business for the foresesable fature. Furthermore, the management is nof aware
of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability (o coniinue a going concemn. Therefore,
{be financial statements are prepared on a geing concam basis.

Cinssificailon of lnvesfmenis
Management decides on acquisition of an investment whether to classify it as financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income or financial asset through profit or loss. The Group classifies investment as financial asset at fair

vatue through profit or loss ifthe investment is classified as held for trading and vpon initial recognition it is designated by
the group as at fair value through profit or loss.
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Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumpéion (Continued)
Impairntent of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of defauit and expected loss rates. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and sefecting the inpnts to the impairment calcutation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Trade receivables and die from reloted porties

The Group applies the simplified approach to messuring expected credit losses to its trade s receivables and due from
related parties, which uses a provision matrix. The provision rates are based on days past due for Groupings of various
customer segments that substantially share the same risk characteristics or loss pattems. The provision rates are inilially
based on the Group's historical observed defanft rates and adjusted with cwrent conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. At each reporling date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

Cash and bank balances

Fmpairment on cash and bank balances has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturitics
of the exposores. The Group considers that its cash and bank balances and restricted grants have low credit risk based on
the external credit ratings of the counterpartics. While cash and bank balances are also sul:]ect to nnpamnent the identified
impairment loss is considered lmmatenal

Usefid Hves of property, plant and eguipment and intanglble assers

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
for calculating depreciation and amortisation. This estimate is determined after considering the expected usage of the asset
ot physical wear and tear. Manapement reviews the residual value and useful Iives annually and future depreciation charge
would be adjusted where the management believes the useful lives differ from previous esfimates.

Use of incremental rate of financing

. For measuring the lease liability, the Group discounted the lease payments based on its incrementat rate of financing as on
. 1January 2022, i.e. 4%. The definition of incremental financing rate states that the rate should reflect what the Group would
. be charged to borrow over a similar term and vnder snmlax clrcumstances To determme an appmpnaie rate, the Group has

- obtained the relevant information from its bankers. '

Provislon for siow moving Iinventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost or net cealisable value. When inventories become old or obsclete, an estimate is
made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts this estimation is performed on an individual basis.
Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are old or obsolete, are assessed collectively and a provision
applied according to ihe inventory type and the degree of ageing or obsolescence.

Megsurement of blolagical assels

Biokegical assets are measured at Fakr value less cost to sell, with any change therein recognised in consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The fair value of immature livestock is determined by reference to meat
price of veal, adjusted to reflect the age of the calves and to the landed cost of a heifer by reference to the recent purchases
of the Group. The fair value of mature cows is determined by reference to landed cost of & heifer by reference to the recent
purchases adjusted to reflect the decline in productivity through the lactation cycles, the meat price at the point of slaughter.
Where the fair value cannot be measured reliably, in such a case, that biological asset shalf be measured at its cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulaled impairment losses, Once the fair value of such a biological asset becomes
reliably measurable, an entity shall measure it at its fair value less costs to sell.
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5 Revenue

The following sets out the disaggregation of the Groap's revenue from contracts with customers:

o)  Type of goods or services

2022 2021
QR QR
Dairy sales ) 884,982,822 685,895,493
Juice sales 64,004,325 52,958,285
Livestock sales 27,207,063 23,700,330
Compost and manure sales 4,057,420 3,800,160
Plastic sales 1,917,358 ’ 1,983,370
Feed sales 2,447,364 2,630,049
Other sales 4,000 -
985,620,392 772,967,687

b} Timing of satisfaction of performance obligation
Goods transferred at point in fime 985,620,392 772,967,687

6. Cost of revenue
2022 2021
QR QR
Cost of dairy milk and packaging material 242,497,886 119,609,574
Cuast of feeds 226,498,652 189,637,730
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {Nofe 12} 117,468,905 104,074,516
Direct wages 85,707,619 79,955,970
Remnt and maintenance ' . 58,684,557 41,131,795
Utilities . . 24,540,579 19,363,239
Cost of sale of livestock (Nare 16) ) IR 1 e % § ¥ - 19,918,713
Production related indirect expenses S o 18,158,253 o 17,477,067
Loss from death oflivestock (Nete 16) 12,943 460 . C 8,875,480
Cost of slanghtered animals 10,513,703 oL 10,387,202
Cost of medicing 9442514 8,477,047
Product disposal and provision for slow moving inventories 6,270,453 3,019,445
Cost of feeds sold . 2,042,056 2,020,612
Cost of disposed slaughteced animals 941,231 1,627,510
Amortization of intangibles (Nore 14) 56,036 01,268
COVID-19 Expenses - 87,200
Others 6,820,917 2,977,166
844,614,963 628,731,534
Less:

Net fair value pain on biological assets (Nare 16) {68,856,232) (52.470,576)
775,718,731 576,260,958
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7.

Other income

2022 2021

QR QR

Government support (Nete ) 110,883,058 122,425,032
Rental income 2,036,808 1,344,722
{Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment {186,986) 25,734
Miscellaneous income 4,714,396 4,101,370
117,447,276 127,896,858

Notei;

During the period, the Group’s wholly owned subsidiary has recognised a support from the Goverminent amounting to
QR 110,883,058, The support is granted to the subsidiaty on account of the investment made in the field of dairy
manufacturing to ensure the country's food supplies. There are certain conditions that need to be met by the Group in order
to be entitled to the government support. As at 31 December 2022, management believes that these conditions have been
satisfactorily achieved, accordingly, the support has been recognised.

Selling and distribution expenses

2022 2021
QR QR
Staff cost 44,787,568 36,329,863
Advertising and promaotion 28,359,085 31,314,344
Water, electricity and fuel 7,060,159 3,721,871
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 12) 3,216,782 5,207,221
Insurance 567,747 425,236
Communication 294,142 252,670
Amortization of intangibles (Nefe 14) 189,639 152,108
Transportation 43,697 83,502
Provision for doubtful debts (Nofe 18) 35,802 89,935
Government fees 1,760 27,233
Cthers 2,238,000 348,078
87,094,441 83,452,031

General and administrative expenses
2022 2021
QR QR
Statf cost 24,899,210 19,192,775
Depreciation of right-of-use assels (Vofe 13} 12,901,441 13,311,193
Communication £2,368,651 9,701,342
Management fees 9,000,000 9,000,000
Professional charges 8,835,979 14,785,210
[nsurance 8,398,422 8,628,168
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Nore 12} 4,766,557 1,912,896
Amortization of intangible asscts (Wote 14) 1,960,101 1,554,605
Board sitting fee and remuneration® 730,000 2,021,563
Governmental fees 192,068 156,006
Stationery and printing 160,404 143,253
Repair and maintenance and others 2,352,830 706,935
86,565,664 81,114,006

¥ 2022 represents sitting fees only
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Lik Finance cost and bank charges
2022 2021
QR QR
Finance cost on bank financing 55,655,749 34,791,483
Finance cost on bank overdrafis 3,123,461 1,583,502
Exchange loss/{gain) 180,540 (2,323 815)
Finance cost on lease liabilitics {Voie 25} 1,209,588 2,052,729
Finance cost on financing transactions 99,833 290,484
60,268,731 36,403,383

11, Income tax expense

The Group calculates the period income tax expense using (he {ax rate that would be applicable to the expected totaf annual
earnings. The major component of income {ax expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss are:

2022 - 2021

QR Lo QR
zclzr;e fax expense reported in the consolidated statement of profit 1,014,548 628,075
Income tax tate 10% 10%
Nore I:

In December 2019, a new Executive Regulations for the tax was introduced in the State of Qatar, replacing the previous
execulive regulations, The tax exempiion provided under Article 4 (paragraph 13} of the New Tax Law in relation to non-
“Qatari investors® share in profits in Listed entilies shall not be extended to subsidiaries/associates of listed enlities.
‘Accordingly, if a listed entity holds shares in a non-listed entity, the share of profits in the non-listed entity atiributable to
the listed entity would be subject to tax (o (he extent of the profit share attributable to non-Qatari sharcholders in the listed
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12, Property, plant and equipment .
Building and Motor Furniture Capital work in
Land structures - Machineries vehicles and fixtures progress Total
QR QR QR QR QR QR QR

Cost: '
As at 1 January 2022 55,200,100 1,852,500,654 952,058,102 72,152,676 53,326,611 280,389,494 3,265,636,677
Reclassification (Nete a) — (6,035,815) 16,336,026 5,117,843 (15,418,034) - -
Additions during the year - 31,546,942 7,143,937 441,951 6,068,888 302,313,797 348,415,515
Transfers during the year - 58,279,720 63,131,456 - 1,622,202 {125,033,378) -
Disposals during the year - — (598.430} {304,350) - - (503,280}
Transfer 10 intangible assets during the vear (Note 14) - — - - - {1,916,353) {1,916,353)
As 3¢ 31 December 2022 55,200,100  1.936300.541 1,040.871,091 77407620 46,499,647 455,753,560 3.611.232.559
Accumulated depreciation: T
As at 1 January 2022 - 176,098,135 130,864 253 23,026,427 28,125,744 - 338,114,559
Reclassification (More a) - 5,456,256 3,443,767 1,007,248 (2,507,271) - -
Charge for the year - 54,208,129 33,905,338 7,206,156 16,132,581 - 125,452,244
Related to disposals during the year — - - (333,002) {36,062) - - (419,064}
As at 3¥ December 2022 — 235,762,520 187,880,356 31,153,809 28,351,054 - 483,147,739
Net book value o
As 2t 31 December 2022 55.200,100 1.700.538,621 - . . §52,190.735 - 46,253,811 18.148,593 455,753,560 3,128,084.820
Cost: -
As at I January 2021 55,200,100 1,753,017,501 . .. 866,463,743 61,495,734 46, 888 710 237,824,258 3.020,890,048
Additions dunng the year - 24,989,856 - 13,371,352 10,818,552 8,856,094 192,176,568 250,212,422
Transfers during the year - 74,502,337 72229527 . 11,350 1,204,533 {147.947.587) -
Digposals during the year — i - . {6.322) -{173,000) (3,622,726) - (3,802,048)
Transfer 1o intangible assets during the year (Note 14) — L= o - : - - {1,663,745) (1,663,745)
As 8t 31 December 2021 55.200,160 1852505694 - 952.058.102 72,152,676 53.326.611 280,385.494 3.265.636,677
Accumulated depreciation: .
As at I January 2021 - 128,163,127 . - 84,855,603 16,803,587 20,753,348 - 250,575,665
Charge for the year — 47,935,008 46,011,599 © 6,284,591 10,963,035 - 111,154,633
Related 1o disposals during the year — N - . {2,949 © - (62,151) (3,590,639} - (3,655,739)
As at 31 December 2021 o 176,098,135 130,864,253 23,026,427 28,125,744 — 358,114,559
Net book vatue
As at 31 December 2021 55,200,100 1676411559 821,193,849 49,126,249 25,200,867 280,389,494 2.907,522.118
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£2. Property, plant and equipment {Continued)

Notes:

{ai  During the year, Group has performed fixed asset vecification and comptonization and tagging activity. Based on this
exercise group has reclassified the assets {o the accarate class of assets. There were no material incremental depreciation
impact due to reclassification.

(&  Capital work-~in-progress represents expenses incurred by the Group in respect of construction of farm and factories.

Additions and capital work in progress (o the property, plant and equipmen( during the year included the following

transactions with related parties:
2022 2021
Related party Nature of transactions QR QR
w‘ﬁ““ Trading and Contracting Construction work 25,985,757 30,321,846
Elepancia Electro Mechanicat Services Supply and installation of
WLL. utilities 5,610,213 25,432,098
Joury Tour & Travels W.L.L. Logistics 95,126 —
Retaj Baywalk Residence W.L.L Agcomodation 56,000 -
Supply and installation of o
Crede Trading Company W.L.L. portable RO plant/TT - 1,320,000
equipment
; . Supply and installation of - IR
Elegancia Steel Trading W.L.L. furniture and fixtures 84,000
Aura Hospitality W.L.L. Sale of asset - 4,000

Depreciation expenses charged for the year ended 31 December 2022 are allocated as follows:

2022 o 2ml
_ R . R
Cost of revenue (Nate 6) ' © 117,468,905 104,074,516
Selling and distribution expenses {Note §) L 3216,782 0 - - 5,207,221
CGeneral and administrative expenses (Wolz 9) " 4,766,557 © 1,912 896
' CL 125,452,244 111,194,633
13.  Right-of-use assets
2022 2021
QR QR
Cost:

As at | January 72,627,685 72,627,685
Remeasurement (39,434,489) -
As at 31 December 33,593,196 72,627,685

Accrumilated depreciation: .
As at | Janary 32,760,4%6 19,449 303
Remeasurement : (33,125,267) -
Charge for the year {Nefe 9} 12,901,441 13,311,193
As at 31 December 12,536,670 32,760,496
Net carrying amounts as at 31 Pecember 21,056,526 39,867,189
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H,

15

Intangible assets
2022 2021
QR OR
Cosi:
As at | Januvary 10,141,879 6,558,137
Additions during the year 1,053,570 1,919,997
Transfer from capital work in progress (Vete [2) 1,916,353 1,663,745
As at 31 December ' 13,111,802 10,141,879
- Accurmulated amortization:
As at | January 4,394,809 2,596,768
Charge for the year 2,305,776 1,798,041
As at 31 December 6,700,585 4,394,809
Net carrying amounts as ac 31 December 6,411,217 5,747,070
Amortization expenses charged for the year ended 31 December 2022 are allocated as follows:
22 2021
QR QR
Cost of revenue (Note §) 56,036 91,268
Selling and distribution expenses (Wote 8) 289,639 152,108
General and administrative expenses (Nore 9 1,960,101 1,554,665
2,305,716 1,798,041
Financial invesiments held at FVTPL
Movement in financial investments: =~ R : Lo - 2022 2021
As at t January T 144,060,018 -
Addition during the year o R 108,006,291 133,230,227
Cost of disposal during the year (12,683,037) -
Net change in fair value of financial investments (21,258,320) 10,820,791
As at 31 December 218,124,952 i44,060,018

As at 31 Becember 2022, equity investments represent equity shares queted in Qatar Stock Exchange and Egyptian Exchange.
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16,

17,

Biclogical assets

The Group’s livestock balance primarily comprises of cows which are used in the production of milk and meat. The Group’s
biological assets stock comprises both immansre and mature livestock.

Immature livestock comprise of calves that are intended to be reared to mature. These calves are held to procice milk, but
Bhave not started to produce milk. The fair value of the immature fivestock is determined by reference to meat price of veal,
adjusted to reflect the age of the calves and landed cost of a heifer.

Mature livestock includes cows, which have begun milk production. The fair value of the matured cows is determined by
reference to the latest landed cost over heifer adjusted to reflect the decline in produciivily through ihe lactation cycles and the
meat price at the point of slaughter.

The value of livestock as follows:

2022 2021
QR QR
As at | Janunary ) 198,285,414 186,623,743
Gain arising from change in the fair value of biological assefs (Nete ¢} 68,896,232 524790,576
Cost of sale of ivestock (Nore &) (21,728.112) {19.918,713)
Transfer to slanghtered animals’ ihventorics T (11,754,534) ) {12,0114,712)
Loss from death of livestock {¥ofe 6) : (12,943,460) C T (8,875,480)
As 2t 31 December L 226,755,140 198,285,414
The value of livestock as follows:
2022 2021
OR QR
Current livestock 813800 . 562,800
Nen-current livestock - 219,941,340 197,722 614
As at 31 December 220,785,140 - 198,285,414
Mature livestock g o R o o 139,426,040 126,309,414
Immature livestock - R 81,329,100 71,976,000
As at 31 December - 224,755,140 198,285,414
The quantity of livestock cwned by the Group is as follows:
Mature livestock 12,861 12,671
Immature livestock 12,1585 10,910
As at 31 December 25,016 23,581
Inventories
2022 . 2021
QR QR
Feed inventory 117,680,205 100,779,427
Dairy packaging and raw material inventory 197,593,888 86,946,701
Spare parts ' 46,359,364 36,408,463
BDairy finished goods inventory 32,421,692 26,045,207
Juice packaging and raw material inventory 22,833,990 4,335,899
Juice finished goods inventory 9,306,566 3,946,711
Chemical and medicine inventory 5,505,659 5150661
Plastic inventory 4,365,562 3,083,172
Others 10,686,797 8,018,845
446,753,723 374,696,086
Less : Provision for slow moving inventories {3,779,538) {2,759.648)
As at 31 Decemmber 442,974,185 271,936,438
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17.

18.

15,

Inventories (Continued}

The movement in proviston for slow moving inventories is as follows:

2622 2021

QR QR

As at | Fanuary 2,759,648 3,107,629

Provision/(reversals) during the vear 1,019,850 {347.981)

As at H December 3,779,538 2,759,648
Trade and other debit batances

2022 2021

QR QR

Trade receivables 112,698,039 80,308,799

Less: Impairment loss allowance - {486,678) {1.040.099)

© 112,211,361 79,268,700

Government support (Note 7) 116,883,058 122,425,032

Advance to suppliers . 44,631,582 42,581,198

Prepaid and other advances o o ; 35,473,566 (28,876,088

Deferred expenses : ) ) S : 4,253,437 S - 3,726,458

Staff receivables ) : i 517,351 416,771

As at 31 December ’ 307,970,755 277,294,247

Movement in tmpairment loss aliowance on trade receivables is recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position

as follows:
2022 2021
. QR QR
© Asat 1 January ' C ' 1040099 11,550,164
" Provided during the ycar (Nofe 8} o 35,862 - 89,935
“Written off during the year {589,183) {600,0003
As at 31 Pecember i 486,678 1,040,099

{a) Unimpaired receivables are considered collectible based on historic experience and no finance cost is charged on the

trade receivabies.
{b) The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaited assets.

Cash and cash equlvalents

2022 2021

QR QR

Cash on hand 501,782 377,063
Bank balances (Vote i} - 61,775,748 51,878,319
Cash andd bank balances 62,367,530 52,255,382
Resteicted bank balances (19,501,031} {30,838,254)
42,866,499 21,417,128

Bank overdraft (99,492,839 {74,041,899)
Cash and cash equivalents (56,626,340) (32,624,771

Noie it

Balances with banks are assessed to have low credit risk of default since these banks are highly regulated by the central
banks of the respective couniries, Accordingly, management of the Group estimates the loss allowance on balances with
baiks at the end of the reporting period at an amount equal to 12 months ECL. None of the balances with banks at the end
of the reporting period are past due, and taking into account the historical default experience and the current credit ratings
of the bank, the management of the Group have assessed that there is no impairment, and henoe have not recorded any loss

allowances on these balances.
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20.

2L

22.

23

Share capital
2022 2021
No of shares Amount No of shares Amaunt
OR OR
Authorised, issued and paid-up ordinary 1,901,000000  1,901,000,000 1,901,000,000 1,901,000,000

and special shares QR 1 per each share

The Group’s authorized, issued and paid-up share capital amounting o0 QR 1,501,000,000 is divided into 1,900,999,9949
ordinary shares and one special share, the nominal value is QR 1 of each share,

Special share

The State of Qatar, represented by the Ministry of Commerce and Industry, has allotted one Special Share, and the Special
Share will have specific rights to appoint certain Directors, veto particular decisions of the Company, and other rights, The
Special Shareholder, as holder of the Special Share, has the rights set ont in Asticle 28 of Raladaa’s Article of Association,

Legal reserve

In seceordance with the provision of the Qatar Commercial Law and Group’s Arlicle of Association, a minimum amount of
10% of the profit in each year is required to be transferred to legal reserve nntil the balance in the lepal reserve becomes equal
{0 50% of the Group’s paid up share capital. This reserve is not available for distribution, except n circumstances specified
in the above mentioned law,

Acquisition reserve

This balance represents the issuance of shares to the Founders against the transfemng of nwncrshlp in capital of Baladna Foad

Industries W.L.L and setllmg of their current account.

Islamic financing L R
.. .2022 R 1 |

QR QR
Istamic financing 1 (Nofe i S 1,008,327,523 1,021,327,524
Isfamic financing 2 (Note i) S 630,080,000 250,000,000
Islamic financing 3 {Nore ifi) 81,993,600 -
As at 31 December 1,720,321,123 1,271,327.524
Current portion 86,125,000 78,000,000
Mon-current portion 1,634,196,123 1,193,327,524
As at 3t December 1,720,321,123 1,271,327,524

Nates:

()  This represents Murabaha facility obtained by the Company’s subsidiary (Baladna Food Industries W.L.L.) fiom: a
focal bank to finance the construction of cows’ farm and working capital requirements. The facility carries profit rate
of 5.75% per annum {202 1; 3.00% per annvum),

(i}  This represents financing facility obtained by the Company’s Subsidiary (Baladna Food Industries W.IL.L.) from a
local bank to support expansion and business development. This facility carries management fee of 5.75% per annum
{202F; 3.00% per annurm}

i) This represents financing facility obtained by the Company’s Subsidiary (Baladna Food Industries W.L.L.) from a

local bank to support expansion and business development. The facility carries profit rate of 5.80% per annum (2021
nil)
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24, Employees’ end of service henefits
2022 2021
QR QR
As 4t } January 10,578,832 7,652,623
Provision Provided during the year 4,174,135 4,033.224
Payments made during the year (1,163,405} (1,107,017)
As at 31 December 13,589,562 10,578,332
25.  Lease liabilities
2422 2021
QR QR
As at 1 January 42,42£,329 54,603,787
Remeasurement (7,610,553) -
Finance cost charged (Note 16) 1,209,588 2,052,729
Repayments during the year (12,028,068) (14,235,137
As st 31 December 23,592,296 42,421,329
Current portion 15,186,935 14,016,925
Non-cusrent portion 8,805,361 28,404 404
As et 31 December 23,991,296 42.421,329
26.  Short term financings
2022 2021
QR QR
. Financings 88,206,904 . 51321755

E - This represents document credit facility obtained from a local bank in erder to finance the workmg capl(al requu'ements The .

facility carries finance rate of 3,735 per annum (2021: 3.00% per anfmm).

27, Trade and cther credit balances

2022 2021

QR QR

Trade payables 144,747,184 96,503,086

Accmed expenses 61,176,101 51,816,923

Provision for social and sports fund (Nete 35} 2,015,293 3,345,897

Other liabilities 31,754,876 25 368 929

AS at 31 December 239,693,454 177,030,835
28, Basic and diluted earnings per share

2022 2021

QR QR

Profit for the year (QR) 80,611,726 133,835,883

Weighted average number of shares outslanding during the year 1,901.000,000 1,901,000,000

Basic and dituted ¢arnings per shiare (QR) 0.642 0.070
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29,

Related party disclosures

Tn the normal course of its business, the Group enters into transactions with the parties who fall under the definition ofa
related party as per IAS 24 “Related party disclosires ". Related parties represent major sharcholders, directots and key
management personnel of the Group, and etities controfled, jointly controlied or significantly influenced by such parties.
Pricing policies and tertng of these transactions are approved by the Group's management.

Ralanices and transactions between the Group and its subsidéaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Transactions between the Group, affiliates and Board of Directors are
disclosed below. The details of the transactions and the balances with such refated parties during the year are as follows:

a) Related party transactions

2022 2021
Sales  Purchases Sales Purchases
QRr QR QR GR
Yemek Doha Catering Services W.L.L, 13,634,553 - 19,108,649 -
Aura Hospitality W.L.L. 5,724,417 - 3,735,678 34,308
Widam Food Company Q.P.5.C. 4,736,762 - 6,120,000 -
Elegancia Landscape W.L.L. 1,661,178 681,231 3,652,110 2,522,682
Aura Entertainment W.L.L. 1,204,903 - - 836,495 -
Urbacon Tradiog and Contracting W.L.L, 999,969 18,512,949 - 1,718
Sazeli Restaurant W.L.L. 812,611 - 439,075 —
Orient Pgarl Restanrant W.L.L. 256,122 8,260 172,149 75,927
Damasca Restaurant W.L.L. 229,131 - 99,230 -
Urbacon Plant, Machinery and Vehicles (A Branch of
Urbacon Trading and Contracting Company WL 1.} 140,611 1,380 141,347 90,193
Elegancia Group W.L.L. 20,878 - - -
Power International Holding W.L.L. - 15,347,914 - 15,596,205
Jouey Tour & Travels W.L.IL. - 3,581,462 - 4,145 327
- Stark Security W.L.L, - 2,145,616 - 1,363,823
" Credo Trading Company W.L.L. - 1.816,764 - 1,203,497
-Aalaf Qatar W.L L. ~ 924,570 - . 53817833
Printshop for Printing Services W.L.L - 236,547 - 42,240
General Pension and Social Security Authority - 179,967 - 182,298
Elegancia Hospitality Services W.L.L. - 116,790 - -
Assets Real Estate Development Co, W.L.L - 87,896 - 240,921
Elegancia Steel Trading W.L.L. - 10,200 - 3,500
Urbacon Workshop Department (A Branch of Urbacon _ _ _ 13.980.125
Trading and Contracting Company W,L.L.) R
Elegancia Electro Mechanical Services W.L.L. - - - 323,680
Elegancia Gabro Trading and Transport W.L.L. - - - 102,306
Elegancia Stong for Marble & Granite Trading W.L.L. - - - 14,681
Retaj Baywalk Residence W.L.L - — - 8,000
QOthers
Mt. Moutaz Mohammad Al Khayyat - - 445,782 -
32,430,135 43,713,540 34,754,515 45 769,264
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b)  Due from related parties

2022 2021
QR QR
Yemek Doha Catering Services W.L.L. 9,197,873 4,385,838
Aura Hospitality and Food Services W.L.L. 7,612,751 4,200,713
Elegancia Landscape W.L.L. 4,868,215 3,896,269
Utbacon Trading and Contracting W.1L.L. 3,942 427 -
Aura Entertainment W.L.L. 2,164,503 980,540
Widam Food Company Q.P.S.C. 1,449,396 760,000
Sazeli Restaurant W.LL. T do6 557,636
Printshop for Printing Services W.L.L. 309,620 289,025
Damasca Restaurant W.L.L, 142,506 161,376
Urhacun‘ Plant, Machinery and Vehicles (A Branch of Urbacon Trading and 127,168 50554
Contracting Company W.L.L.}
Retaj Baywalk Residence W.L.L 92,000 24,000
QOrient Pearl Restaveans LLL.C. 68,695 70,005
Elegancia Group W.L.L. 29,878 -
As at 3] December 30,749,498 15,376,456
¢)  Dne to related parties
2022 2421
QR QR
Elegancia Electro Mechanical Services W.L.L. 3,301,774 2,375,529
Joury Tour & Travels W.L.L. 564,327 185,393
Credo Trading Company W L L. 211,786 -
Elegancia Steel Frading W.L.L. 167,785 125,308
- General Pension and Social Security Authority o . - 30,720 : 15,729
* Assets Real Estate Development Co. WEL . S L0660 - 285921
‘Urbacon Workshop Department (A Branch of Urbacon Tradmg SRR e _ 5 257,181
-and Contracting Company W.L,L.) ) Lol FEE I A
Urbacon Trading and Contracting W.L.L. S B T P 5,205,487
Aalaf Qater W.L.L o R S - 401,839
Elegancia Hospitality Services WL L. . R - 162,227
Others L 5,825 5,825
As at 3 December 4,283,283 14,590,439
dy  Compensation of ey management personnel
2022 2021
QR QR
Salaries and short-ierm benefits 15,094,987 13,774,249
Emplovees' end of service benefits 497,718 417,287
15,592,705 14,191,536
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Dividend

On 20 April 2021, the General Assembly approved the final dividend of QR 100,753,000, equivalent to QR 0.053 per
share.

On 20 April 2022, the General Assembly approved the final dividend of QR 100,753,000, equivalent to QR 0.053 per
share. .

Financial visk management
The Group has exposure to the follewing risks from ifs use of financial instruments:

- Market risk

= Credit risk

- Liquiidity risk
- Capital risk

The board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management
frameworl, The board has established a finance committee which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's
risk management strategy and policies. The committes reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities. There
have been no changes to the Group’s exposures to risk or the methods used io measure and manage these risks during the
year.

The Gronp audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies
and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in the light of the risks faced by the Group.

The Group's financial instraments consists mainly of due from related parties, trade and other debit balances, cash and
bank balances, financings, bank overdrafs, trade and other credit balances, lease liabilities and due to related parties.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, equity price and finance rates will
affect the Group's income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk managcmcnt .
is to manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the refurn, :

Currency risk

The Group manages its cwrrency risk by regularly assessing current and expected foreipn currency exchange rate
movements. Management befieves that there is minimal risk of significant losses since most of the foreign currency rates
are constant against Qatarl Riyal.

Finance rate visk
The Group is exposed to finance rate risk as it borrows finds at both fixed and floating finance rates. The risk is managed
by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate.

For financings, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year, A 25 basis point increase or decrease is nsed when reporting finance rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in finance rates,

At 31 December 2022, if finance rates on QR denominated financing had been 23 basis point higher/lower with all other
varigbles held constant, profit for the vear would have been QR 4,770,052 (2021: QR 3,491,728) lower/higher, mainly as
a result of higher/lower finance expense on financings.

The Group's exposures to finance rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
manhagement section of this note.
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Financial risk management (Continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if 2 counterparty o a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations. The Compsny’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each

counterparty.

Credit risk arises on trade receivables, government support, due from related parties and bank balances.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
internationat credit-rating agencies. Bank balances are held with reputed banks in and outside Qatar. Given this,
management do not expect these banks to fail on their oblipations.

Trade receivables have adopted the same simplified approach and loss allowance is calculated based on lifetime expected
credit losses. Contract assets and trade receivables are determined to have the same credit risk exposures as fundamentalky

based on the same customers.

The Company’s maxitaum exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date is the carrying amount of its financial assets,

which are the following:

Lass

Note 12 month or Gross carrying Net carrying
2022 lifetime ECL amount allowance amonnt
oR OR QR
Trade receivables 13 Lifetime ECL 112,698,039 {486,678) 112,211,361
e from related pariies 29 Lifetime ECL 34,709,498 - 30,709,498
Goverment support 18 Lifetime ECL 119,883,058 - 110,883,058
Bank balances 19 12-month ECL 61,775,74_8 - 6LT75,748
2021
Trade receivables 18 Lifetime ECL -_.80,308,799 (1,040,099} - 79,268,700
Due from related parties 29 Lifetime ECL 15,376,456 e 15376456
Government support 18 Lifetime ECL 122 425032 ~ 122425032
Bank balances 19 12-month ECL. SLB78,319 - 51,878,3 19

Trade receivables

The Following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables from customers
as at 31 December

Days past due

Upto 31-60 090 91120 120-365  Over 365

2022 30 days days days days days days Total

' QR QR GR QR QR QR QR
Expected credit loss rate - - - - 63% 100%
Gross carrying ansount 93,649,407 13,761,502 3,188,390 1,396,990 588,784 1§2,966 112,698,030
Loss allowance — — — —~ 373,712y {112966) (486,678}
Net trade receivables 93.649.407 13,761,502 3188390 1396990 215,072 - 112,211,361
2021
Expected credit loss rate - - - - 52% 130%
Gross carrying amount 760,260,047 6,937,694 1,268,949 585472 437,119 813,518  £0,308,799
Loss allowance - — — — (226,581) (813,518) {1,040,099)
Net trade receivables 70,266,047 6937694 1268949 585,472 214,538 — 79,268,700
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Financial risk management (Contirned)
Credit risk {Continued)

D from related parties

Management betieves that there is no credit risk from the due from the related parties, because these counter parties are
under the control of the shareholders of the Company. As a result, they did not record any allowance for impairment loss
under the ECL for the cument year and previous year.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is
to engure, as far as possibie, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under boih normal
and siressed conditions, wilhowt incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The table below sumimnarises the maturitics of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

Less than Between Between Over 5

2022 I year land2years 2andSycars years " Total

QR QR QR QR QR
Financings 174,331,914 133,684,616 346,857,696 1,153,653,811  1,808,528,037
Bank overdralt 95,492 839 - - - 99,402, 839
Trade and other payables 236,693 454 - - - 239,693,454
Due to refated parties 4,283,283 - T - 4,283,283
Lease liabilities 15,186,935 731,110 240457 7,833,794 23,992.296

532,988,415 134,415,726 347,098,153 1,161 487,605 _ 2,175.989,909

2021

Finaneings 129,321,755 66,062,500 281250000  846,015024  1,322,649,279
Bank overdrafi 74,041,899 - - - 74,041,899
Trade and other payables 177,030,835 - - - 177,030,835
Dug to related parties 14,590,439 - - - 14,590,439
Lease liabilities 14,016,925 13,408 396 7965206 7,030,802 42,421,329

409,001,853 79,470,896 289,215,206 853,045,826 1.630,733,781
Capitai risk

The Group s objective when managing capital is to ensure its ability to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business to provide retvrns for its shareholders and to prowde best retwms on capital investinent
by pricing goods and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group sets tire amount of capital funds in accordance with the planned level of operations and in. proportion (o the
levels ofrisk. The Group manages the shareholder’s fnds and makes adjustments 10 it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid te shareltolder, return capital to sharcholder, issue new shares or realise
assels in erder to reduce debt. The Group’s equity comprises share capital, legal reserve, retained earnings and acquisition
reserve is measured at QR 2,248.875,152 (2021: QR 2,271,031,719).

The Group is not subject to externally-imposed capital requirements.
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33,

Segment reporfing

The group has single significant business operation which is an agriculteral activity of production and sates of diary product
in addition to other related products and aciivities. All other business segments are not significant,

Frir value measuremeits

Fair value hierarchy

" The Group uses the following hierarchy for deterrining and disclosing the financial assets held at fair value through profit

of loss and biclogical assets by following vatuation technique:

Level 11 Quoted (unadfusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or Habilities;

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inpute which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable,
either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
observable market data,

As at 31 December, the Group held the following financial and non-financial assets measured at fair valoe:

2022 “Level 1 Level2  Leveld
QR QR QR QR

Financial asset

Financial investments held at fair value through profit or

loss 218,124,952 218,124,952 - -
Biologicalassetls -~ 220755140 - 220,755,140 -

. - S 20 " Level 1 “Level2  Level3
inancial

Financial investments held at fair value through profit or

144060 018 144,060,018 - -
loss

Non-finacial assets

Biclogical assets 198,285,414 — 198,235414 -

Biolngical assets are messured at fair value less cost to sell, based on loecal and international market prices, whenever
available, of livestock of similar age, breed and genetic merit with adjustments, where necessary, to reflect the differences.

The fair value of immature Hvestock is determined by reference to meat price of veal, adjusted o reflect the age of the
calves and to the landed cost of a heifer by reference to the recent purchases of the Group. The fair value of mature cows
is determined by reference to latest landed cost of a heifer by reference to the recent purchases adjusted to reflect the
decline in productivity through the lactation cycles, the meat price at the point of slanghter.

During the vear ended to 31 December 2022, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair vatue measurements,

and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements on Biological asset. There were no movements within
Level 3 fair value measurements.
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Commitments and confingencies

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has contingent liabilities in respect of various banks’ letters of credit and other
guaraniees arising in the ordinary course of business from which it is anticipated that no materist liabitities will arise are as
follows:

2022 2021
QR QR
Guaraniees and letters of credit £4,799,19 52311928

Social and sports fund
In accordance with Law No. 13 of 2008, the Group is required to provide  provision for the support of sperts, social,
cuoltural, and charitable aclivities with an amount equivalent to 2.5% of the annual net profit. This social and sports

contribution is considered as an appropriation of retained earings of the Group and presenied in the consolidated statement
of changes in shareholders equity.

Subsequent events

There were no significant evenis after the reporting date, which have a bearing on these financial statements.

Comparative figure
Certain comparative amounts int the Group’s consolidated financéal statements and notes to the consolidated financial

statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. This reclassification does not impact on net
assels or equity. : :
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